IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA FILED

SEP 0 8 1999

CLERK, SUPREMEZOURT

∕≜∖∏

By \_\_\_\_\_

CASE NO: 96-352

12

4th DCA CASE NO: 98-2093

(GIIN

RICKY HOPE , APPELLANT/PETITIONER,

vs

1

STATE OF FLORIDA , APPELLEE/RESPONDENT.

> ON PETITION FOR REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL FOURTH DISTRICT

# PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

/s/ DC#

9

APPELLANT, PRO SE Washington Corr. Inst. 4455 Sam Mitchell Dr. Chipley, Fla. 32428

#### CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PERSONS

The following persons have an interest in the outcome of this proceedings:

1. ROBERT BROWN (VICTIM)

1 · · ·

2. ROBERT BUTTERWORTH, ATTORNEY GENERAL OF FLORIDA

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

\* • • •

(factual & procedural history of case)

Petitioner was charged by way of Information in the Circuit Court of the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit for Broward County, Florida, for Attempted First Degree Murder with a Firearm. (Appendix Exhibit "B" at 2)

The jury found him guilty as charged and the trial court adjudicated him guilty and passed the case for a sentencing hearing (Appendix Ex. "B" at 2)

At the sentencing hearing, it was determined that Petitioner scored a total of 162 sentencing guideline points. The total was arrived at by factoring his current conviction for attempted first degree murder, a prior adult conviction for carrying a concealed weapon and grand theft and a prior juveline delinquency adjudication for robbery with a deadly weapon. An additional 40 points were assessed for severe victim injury, as well as 30 points for "prior serious felony". Based on his sentencing point total, Petitioners guideline range was between 100.5 months and 167.5 months imprisonment, with a recommendation of 134 months incarceration.

The trial court imposed a sentencing of thirty (30) years imprisonment on Petitioner. In so doing, the trial court, both orally and in writing, cited its reasons for aggravating Petitioners sentence as follows: (1) Petitioner had an excessive nonscorable juvenile record; (2) the primary offense upon nonscorable juvenile record; (2) the primary offence upon which Petitioner was sentenced was a crime bearing a sentencing level of seven (7) or higher and he had previously been convicted of offenses of a level eight (8) or higher, specifically a juvenile adjudication for armed robbery, and; (3) Petitioner was not amenable to rehabilitation as envinced by an escalating pattern of criminal activity, specifically a pattern of violet criminal conduct beginning in 1991 with a string armed robbery, then to an armed robbery, and then to the current offence of attempted first degree murder, (Appendix Ex. "B" at 3)

. . . . ,

In support of the trial courts reasons for imposing an upward guideline departure sentence was the result of Petitioners pre-sentence investigation (PSI). The PSI reflects that Petitioner had a history with the juvenile court system ranging as far back as August 1991. Of the 19 allegations of juvenile criminal conduct made against Petitioner, seven resulted in final judicial dispositions where a delinquency determination was made, (Appendix "B" at 3)

Of the seven, four were for felony - type crimes, while three were misdemeanor - type crimes. The remainder consisted of juvenile cases that were either resolved non-judicially, held open without any adjudication or disposition, or nolle prosed. (Appendix "B" at 3) One of the charges the trial court used to premise its third ground for departure, the 1991 strong-arm robbery, was resolved non-judicially, while the 1992 armed robbery was "held open" with no record of any sort of dispostition.

Petitioner objected to the sentence imposed. The District Court affirmed of direct appeal. (Appendix "A" at 1)

A timely Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdicion to this court was filed.

The petition herein follows.

1

• • • •

### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

• , ,

1

Petitioners position is simple, the decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeals directly conflicts with the decision of the First District Court of Appeals on the issues presented.

In fact, the cited cases by the Fourth District Court of Appeals expressly stated that it conflicted with the First District Court of Appeals Decision.

A resolution of the conflict should be determined by this Court under its authority of Article V, § 3 (b) (3), (4), Florida Constitution.

### ARGUMENT GROUND ONE

The decision of the district court directly conflicts with the decision of another district court on the same point of law.

The district court below cited the decision of <u>Hyden</u> <u>v. State</u>, 715 So.2d 960 (Fla App 4th Dist) (en banc). In <u>Hyden<sup>1</sup></u>, the district court below stated "We, therefore, recede from Louigeste, certify conflict with <u>Neal</u> and affirm the conviction of Appellant." Id at 963.

Neal is cited as <u>Neal v. State</u>, 688 So.2d 392 (Fla App lst Dist 1997)<sup>2</sup>

1 - <u>Hyden</u> would appear to hold that counsel could be deemed ineffective for failing to preserve a sentencing issue for review, of course this would now necessitate a collateral relief motion for ineffective assistancec of counsel, but thethe prisoner should not bear this problem when counsel failed to performed trhe act, an appropriate remedy is to sanction counsel on direct appeal, but grant the prisoner or defendant the relief that is apparent on the record. This ensures the fairness between the State and the defendant, when the question is a clear loss of his liberty as protected by the 14th amendment of the U.S. Constitution.

2 - / Sentencing issues are usually always fundemental, for

Because they cited conflict, the case should be resolved by this Court in regards to fundemental error at sentencing and whether the matter can still be heard on direct appeal without preservation of the issue in the trial court. <u>Neal</u> says "yes"; Hope decision below says "no".

• • • •

1

2 (cont.) - they determine whether the duration of ones imprisonment as a quarantine from our society, and will always implicate issues of due process, equal protection or cruel and unusual punishment. (compare) <u>Miller v. Florida</u>, 482 U.S. 423 (1987) Because the matter relates to the actual structure of the Criminal Law judicial process, the issue here is not only fundemental but a "structural defect" which can be corrected at any point, see <u>Sullivan v. Louisiana</u>, 508 \_\_\_\_\_U.S. \_\_\_\_, 113 S. Ct. 2078 (1993).

#### CONCLUSION

The appellant request this court to reverse appellant's conviction(s) as to any or all counts, or to vacate the appellant's sentence as to any or all counts, and to remand for futher proceedings, if necessary.