FILED

SID J. WHITE

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

JUN 2 1998

CLERK, SUP By	REME COURT
Chief De	outy Clerk

SANDRA H. LASKEY, Individually and as Personal Representative of the Estate of DCA CASE NO. 97-01196 GEORGE DOUGLAS LASKEY, III,

CASE NO. 92, 931

Petitioner,

vs.

MARTIN COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT,

Respondent.

RESPONDENT'S AMENDED ANSWER BRIEF ON THE ISSUE OF JURISDICTION (CONFLICT CERTIORARI)

> Alexis M. Yarbrough, Esq. Florida Bar No. 0086861 PURDY, JOLLY & GIUFFREDA, P.A. Attorneys for RESPONDENT MARTIN COUNTY SHERIFF 1322 S.E. Third Avenue Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33316 Telephone: (954) 462-3200 (954) 462-3861 Telecopier:

INTRODUCTION

The Petitioner, Sandra H. Laskey, individually, and as personal representative of the Estate of George Douglas Laskey, III, for and on behalf of George Douglas Laskey, II, and Audrey Laskey, surviving parents, and the Estate of George Douglas Laskey, III, deceased, was the Plaintiff in the trial court and the Appellant in the District Court of Appeal, Fourth District. The Respondent, the Martin County Sheriff, was the Defendant/Appellee. In this Brief of Respondent on jurisdiction, the parties will be referred to as the Petitioner and the Respondent.

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to article V section 3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution. The basis for jurisdiction is set forth in the argument below.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent concurs with Petitioner's recitation of the statement of the case and facts.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The issue of law sought to be reviewed is whether a duty may be imposed upon a sheriff by something other than common law or statute absent a special relationship. Petitioner asserts that this issue has been substantively addressed in the present cause and the Second District's opinion in Cook v. Sheriff of Collier County, 573 So. 2d 406 (Fla. 2d DCA 1991). Petitioner further asserts that the present cause, and the Second District's opinion in Cook are in direct and express conflict on this issue. On the

contrary, there is no direct conflict on this issue between the present cause and the <u>Cook</u> decision. Rather, a direct conflict does exist on this issue between the present cause and the Second District's decision in <u>Hoover v. Polk County Sheriff's Dept.</u>, 611 So. 2d 1331 (Fla. 2d DCA 1993).

The Fourth District in the present action did acknowledge conflict with the Second District's opinion in Cook. The Fourth District's acknowledgment of the conflict was accurate; however, the conflict exists on a separate issue which is not herein sought to be reviewed. Specifically, the Second District's opinion in Cook conflicts with the Fourth District's opinion in the present action and with this court's opinion in Pizzi v. Central Bank & Trust Co., 250 So. 2d 895 (Fla. 1971) on the standard to be applied in reviewing a motion to dismiss. Thus, there is a direct and express conflict between the decision in Cook and the present cause on the applicable standard of review. The conflict on the issue of the appropriate standard of review to be applied to a motion to dismiss is not sought to be reviewed by this court. However, it is necessary to discuss Cook in order to explain why Petitioner's argument is unsound.

Turning to the actual issue herein sought to be reviewed, i.e. whether a duty may be imposed against a sheriff by something other than common law or statute absent a special relationship, a direct and express conflict exists between the Fourth District's opinion in the present action and the Second District's opinion in Hoover, supra. The Fourth District in the present action, and this Court's

opinion in <u>Trianon Park Condominium Assoc. v. City of Hialeah</u>, 468 so. 2d 912 (Fla. 1995), correctly hold that a duty may not be imposed against a sheriff except by common law or statute absent a special relationship. The Second District's opinion in <u>Hoover</u>, <u>supra</u>, held that a duty may be imposed upon a sheriff by policies and procedures promulgated by the sheriff where none otherwise exists under common law or statute. Thus, the decision in <u>Hoover</u> directly conflicts with this Court's decision in <u>Trianon Park</u>, <u>supra</u>, and the Fourth District's decision in the present cause.

Accordingly, a conflict does exist between the decision in Cook and the present cause on the superfluous issue of the standard of review to be applied on a motion to dismiss. However, the relevant conflict on the issue of the imposition of a duty against a sheriff by something other than common law or statute absent a special relationship exists between Hoover and the present cause.

ARGUMENT

I. THE DECISION HEREIN SOUGHT TO BE REVIEWED IS NOT IN DIRECT CONFLICT WITH THE SECOND DISTRICT'S OPINION IN COOKY. SHERIFF OF COLLIER COUNTY, ON THE PIVOTAL ISSUE OF WHETHER A DUTY MAY BE IMPOSED AGAINST A SHERIFF BY SOMETHING OTHER THAN COMMON LAW OR STATUTE ABSENT A SPECIAL RELATIONSHIP

Petitioner incorrectly asserts that the Second District rejected the defendant's argument in Cook that it owed no duty under the circumstances to relay information obtained in a 911 call. Rather, the Second District held:

. . in ruling on a motion [to dismiss] we are confined to a consideration of the allegations found within the four corners of the complaint.

. . . .

Since Mrs. Cook alleged a duty based upon the [911] plans and we must accept all allegations of the complaint as true, Mrs. Cook stated a cause of action, and we, accordingly reverse.

Id. at 408 (citations omitted). Accordingly, the Second District erroneously accepted all factual and legal allegations as true in determining whether the plaintiff in Cook stated a cause of action against the sheriff. The correct standard of review only requires acceptance of factual allegations. See Pizzi, supra. Obviously, Mrs. Cook is not entitled to allege the existence of a legal duty where one does not exist. Thus, there is a direct conflict between the decision in Cook and the present cause on the standard of review to be applied on a motion to dismiss.

However, the court in <u>Cook</u> refrained from determining as a matter of law that a duty existed under the 911 plans. Rather, the court specifically stated, "We cannot determine whether the individual plans establish such a duty because they are not in the record and apparently were not reviewed by the trial court." <u>Ibid.</u>

Thus, the <u>Cook</u> decision conflicts with the present action only on the standard of review issue which is not the issue herein sought to be reviewed.

II. THE TRUE CONFLICT ON THE PIVOTAL ISSUE OF WHETHER A DUTY MAY BE IMPOSED AGAINST A SHERIFF BY SOMETHING OTHER THAN COMMON LAW OR STATUTE ABSENT A SPECIAL RELATIONSHIP EXISTS BETWEEN THE DECISION HEREIN SOUGHT TO BE REVIEWED AND THE SECOND DISTRICT'S OPINION IN HOOVER V. POLK COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT

Turning to the issue sought to be reviewed, the real conflict exists between the Second District's opinion in Hoover, supra, and the present cause. Subsequent to the Second District's opinion in Cook, supra, the Second District adopted as law the dicta in Cook and held that a duty may be imposed against a sheriff under the policies and procedures promulgated by the sheriff where none otherwise exists under common law or statute absent a special Hoover, supra, at 1333. This Court has firmly relationship. stated that "clearly no governmental liability exists" under circumstances where no statutory or common law duty of care exists. Trianon Park, supra, at 919.1 The Fourth District in the present action properly abided by the precedent set forth by this Court in Trianon Park. The Second District's decision in Hoover, sunra, directly conflicts with this court's decision in Trianon Park and the present cause since it improperly expands the holding of <u>Trianon Park</u> to allow a duty to be imposed by something other than common law or statute. Thus, a direct and express conflict exists between the Second District's opinion in Hoover, which adopts the dicta set forth in Cook, and this Court's opinion in Trianon Park, supra, and the present cause.

Accordingly, Respondent concurs that a direct and express conflict exists between the decisions rendered by the Second District in $\underline{\text{Cook}}$, $\underline{\text{sunra}}$, and $\underline{\text{Hoover}}$, $\underline{\text{supra}}$, and the precedent

¹ The "special relationship" exception to this statement of law is not an issue in this case as Petitioner was unable to plead the existence of such a special relationship. See Everton v. Willard, 468 So. 2d 936 (Fla. 1985).

established by this Court in Pizzi, supra, and Trianon Park, supra, which was correctly followed by the Fourth District in the present action.

CONCLUSION

Respondent concurs with Petitioner's request of this Honorable Court to accept jurisdiction and review the merits of the present action.